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Beadle.Michael@DOL.GOV
RE:
NEW EVIDENCE – VETS FILE: 92-00191- (30)

Dear Mr. Beadle:

As per your instructions I am submitting the following documents and evidence in support of my claims and contentions which demonstrate the violation of my rights under the Veterans Reemployment Rights Act (VRRA) and the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA).

My first exhibit is my DOL/VETS File No. 92-00191-(30) which is in your possession, not enclosed and shall be marked as EXHIBIT “A”.

My DOL/VETS file reflects the cursory, unreasonable, inefficient and virtually non-existent investigation by the DOL/LMSA and DOL/VETS of my VRRA/USERRA claim.

Federal Court Judge David V. Kenyon found in, Fairchild v. Robert Reich, Secretary of Labor (CV 92-5765Kn), that the DOL/OFCCP’s investigation of the Pacific Maritime Association “…was so cursory or unreasonable as to be a ‘sham’.”  EXHIBIT “1”

Judge Kenyon made this determination based on the “…fact that the investigations do not appear to have included any review of whether the Pacific Maritime Association (“PMA”) had in place and was carrying out the written Affirmative Action Programs (“AAP”) required by Section 503 and VEVRA and their implementing regulations.”

It is my contention that the DOL/LMSA’s and DOL/VETS’ investigations mirrored those of the DOL/OFCCP.  As evidenced in my file there is no indication that DOL/LMSA or DOL/VETS investigated, confirmed or determined whether PMA had in place or was in compliance with VRRA and USERRA or if the PMA had any rules or regulations written into their Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBA) covering veterans’ rights.

The DOL/LMSA and the DOL/VETS entire investigations were based on one letter from Mr. J. D. MacEvoy, Area Manager for the PMA.  EXHIBIT “2”

PMA is not my employer.  The PMA and the ILWU “Jointly Register”, that is: employ and hire longshore workers in a Joint Registration (hiring) process according to their CBA; the Pacific Coast Longshore and Clerks’ Agreements (PCL&CA).
Therefore, Mr. Mack C. Owens, investigator for DOL/LMSA never contacted my true employer; the PMA and the ILWU.  

He did not contact the Joint PMA/ILWU Registration Committee who makes all the decisions and selections in the registration process, in accordance with the PCL&CA.  

He did not contact the Joint Port Labor Relations Committee or the Joint Coast Labor Relations Committee who have the ultimate control over the Registration Lists - which includes the addition to or subtraction from the Registration Lists - according to the PCL&CA; under Section 8.3 - Registration.

Mr. Owens never inquired if the PMA and the ILWU were in compliance with the laws governing veterans’ reemployment rights under VRRA/USERRA.  He did not ask to see a copy of the PCL&CA to verify if the PMA/ILWU were in total compliance with the statutes of VRRA/USERRA.

He never inquired if the PMA and the ILWU had a program, a process or a procedure in place or written into the PCL&CA protecting veterans’ reemployment rights. 

Instead, Mr. Owens accepted, as gospel, and relied completely on the erroneous and deceptive information provided by Mr. MacEvoy without verifying its veracity.

All of the subsequent opinions and decisions, by DOL/LMSA, DOL/VETS, the U.S. Attorney’s office and the Justice Department, are wrong and in error, for having relied solely on Mr. Owens initial, cursory, unreasonable and inefficient “sham” investigation. 

None of these agencies investigated, verified, or ever considered the merit of my claims and contentions.  Instead, they chose to accept and rely upon the initial malfeasance, nonfeasance and erroneous findings of Mr. Owens’ substandard investigation.

None of these agencies pursued a thorough investigation to discover the truth, but rather chose to manufacture, to fashion, to manipulate, to spin and to distort the facts to fit their decisions in accordance with Mr. Owens’ “sham”, and lacking in credibility, investigation.

These facts alone should warrant a new, in depth and thorough investigation of my claims and contentions.

I will now address Mr. MacEvoy’s deceptive letter and the erroneous information he provided to Mr. Owens.  

First, the PMA and the ILWU consider all longshore workers, who are not Jointly Registered Class “B” or Class “A” longshore workers, to be “casual” longshore workers.

Second, Mr. MacEvoy’s letter states, “In May and June of 1970, approximately 400 additional Class “B” longshoremen were registered from applications taken from the general public.  While some TW’s were registered in this group, no favorable status nor recognition was given.”  (My emphasis added)

The facts are four hundred and twenty-five (425) longshoremen were registered and of those 425, four hundred (400) were TW’s.  There were approximately six hundred (600) total TWs.  Four hundred (400) TWs out of four hundred and twenty-five (425) individuals registered, represents a majority (94%); not some TW’s were registered, as Mr. MacEvoy deceptively characterizes in his letter.  

An obvious favoritism did exist, which Mr. MacEvoy attempted to deceive and to hide from Mr. Owens.

He further states, “His status as a TW, however, would not have, nor does it now, provide entitlement to any special consideration in selection for registration.”

My claim was, and is, that my “veteran status”, not my “TW status”, entitled me to consideration in selection for registration under the statutes of VRRA/USERRA.   

My TW status is only relevant in determining my proper placement after discharge in accordance with the “escalator principle” provision in the statutes of VRRA/USERRA.

Mr. MacEvoy (intentionally, knowingly, willingly and willfully) misses the point and again attempts to deceive and spin his own version and the company agenda regarding the facts.  He totally ignores my reemployment rights as a veteran and attempts to create a false reality in which I am supposedly and allegedly asking for some “special” consideration, as a TW, in the selection process for registration.  This was not the case nor was it based in truth or reality.  

Mr. MacEvoy, the PMA and the ILWU believed then and still believe that their collective bargaining agreements, the PCL&CA, supersede state and federal laws.

Contrary to their belief, the VRRA/USERRA statutes supersede, “…any contract, agreement, policy, practice, or other matter that reduces, limits, or eliminates in any manner any right or benefit provided by [the Act].”  38 U.S.C. 4302(b)

I first became aware of the 1970 registration of approximately four hundred and twenty-five (425) men while I was home on leave and working as a longshoreman, in July 1970.  

I requested to be considered for the 1970 registration but was told I was still in the service and I would not be allowed to obtain and submit an application for registration at that time; in July of 1970.  I was also told not to worry that they (the PMA and the ILWU) take care of their veterans.   

In October of 1972, when I reported back to the ILWU and the PMA, after my discharge from military service, I was told that the PCL&CA did not cover “casuals” requesting veteran rights and therefore, I had no rights under the PCL&CA.

The PCL&CA was not then nor is now in total compliance with the statutes of the VRRA/USERRA and it is apparent that the employers’ position is that the PCL&CA supersedes state and federal laws.  

The VRRA/USERRA and the subsequent case law have determined what requirements are necessary for an employee’s position to be considered permanent and thus covered under the statutes.  

Case law found that if the employee believed, “with reasonable certainty”, that his position would still be there when he returned from military service then his employee status was not temporary, but permanent, and therefore, covered under the statute.  EXHIBIT “3”
Casual longshoremen are not considered to be temporary employees based on case law and not considered as such by the JCLRC in the “guidelines” they adopted in 1990 or in the JCLRC’s newly adopted USERRA Policy of 2003. (See EXHIBITS #3, 9, and then 7)

I contend the ILWU and the PMA were in error when they told me, in October 1972, that I was not entitled to any veteran rights because of my “casual” status and thus, denied me my rightful reemployment position which I have requested in July of 1970, in October of 1972 and ongoing and continuously until the present.

In October 1972, the majority of the 1970 registrants were now “Class A” longshoremen.  Based on the “escalator principle” provision of the VRRA, I should have been placed in a position which my civilian counterparts had obtained in my absence.  My employer, the PMA and the ILWU, denied me this right.  

The work, in the longshore industry, is seasonal and fluctuates throughout the year.  On any given day there may be more work than there are Jointly Registered workers and therefore, the need to have a casual labor force, to fill these jobs, is a necessity.  

In PMA’s 1999 Annual Report, on page 25, it states, “Work on the waterfront... has historically been performed by a work force employed on a ‘casual’ basis.” EXHIBIT “4”

The longshore industry is casual in nature, by the PMA’s own admission, and there has always been a casual labor force.  Therefore, I believed “with reasonable certainty” my job would still be there when I returned from military service, which was the case.

Case law also found that an employee’s position is not a temporary one if his position is “at the will of the employer”.  An employer, by either contract or contrivance, cannot remove a large segment of its workforce from the scope of the law which protects their rights.  EXHIBIT “5”
The casual longshore labor force, in the Ports of Los Angeles and Long Beach (LA/LB), has equaled to or surpassed in number, the amount of Jointly Registered longshore workers at times.  The casual longshore workers represent a very large and integral segment of the total labor force in the longshore industry in the Ports of LA/LB.

I contend the casual longshore workers’ employee arrangement, in the Ports of LA/LB, is “at the will of the employer”; the PMA, the ILWU, the JPLRC and the JCLRC.  

However, I will now present additional evidence that documents the numerous acts, by the PMA, the ILWU, the Joint Port Labor Relations Committee (JPLRC) and the Joint Coast Labor Relations Committee (JCLRC), of discrimination, retaliation and disparate treatment which I have suffered and endured for over thirty-five years. 

The JCLRC has failed to grant me my rights as a veteran and has continuously and erroneously referred to my Coast Arbitration, SC 14 85, as the basis for their denial of my grievances, whenever I have requested my veteran rights throughout the years. 

They fail to realize that SC 14 85 was filed under Section 13 Discrimination based on “union membership”, not veteran.  The word veteran did not appear in Section 13 Discrimination in 1985 and therefore, my claim was not heard under veteran’s rights or   the merit of my veteran claims even considered.    

The word veteran and disabled did not appear in Section 13 Discrimination of the PCL&CA until August 21, 2001.  EXHIBIT “6”

The PCL&CA was in noncompliance with the laws governing veterans, until April 16-17, 2003, by failing to have programs under the Veterans Reemployment Rights Act (VRRA), the now amended USERRA.  EXHIBIT “7”

In 1973, the JPLRC and the JCLRC granted Mike Howit, a veteran and Terminal Warehouseman like myself, Class “B” longshore registration into ILWU Local #13 and then, immediately transferred him to the Marine Clerk’s ILWU Local #63 due to his service connected disabilities.  EXHIBIT “8”  

The JPLRC and the JCLRC did not offer to register me into ILWU Local #13 when I returned from military service in October 1972.  They did not transfer me to ILWU Local #63 based on my service connected disabilities (post traumatic stress disorder, exposure to agent orange and contraction of hepatitis “C”).

In 1990 the JCLRC adopted VRRA “guidelines”, in Meeting No. 6-90, dated May 31, 1990, which instructed the JPLRC to consider all veterans who claim their rights were denied and were not selected for registration due to military service.  EXHIBIT “9”
The JPLRC granted “casuals” J. Richards, J. Maduro and J. Smith registration as Class “B” longshoremen pursuant to and in accordance with these 1990 VRRA “guidelines”.  

However, the documents of the JPLRC Meeting No. 140-90, dated August 3, 1990, and Meeting No. 193-90, dated November 7, 1990, indicate the fact that none of these individuals met a critical requirement of the VRRA which is to report back to their pre-service employer within ninety (90) days of their discharge from military service. 

EXHIBIT “10” 

I was denied this consideration, by the JPLRC, and subsequently initiated Coast Referral, SC 9 91, which I filed under Section 13 Discrimination.  EXHIBIT “11”
My Coast Referral, SC 9 91, was not properly processed by the JCLRC in accordance with Section 13 and Section 17.  I was denied due process and the right to be present to represent my claims at my hearing, which I requested, and which is my right under the PCL&CA.  I was never notified of any decision, by the JCLRC, on this grievance.

I met all the requirements of the VRRA but I was denied the consideration that Richards, Maduro and Smith received, who did not meet the requirements of VRRA.

This is another example of the illegal conduct and the discriminatory and retaliatory behavior of the JPLRC, the JCLRC, the ILWU and the PMA by treating me unfairly and inequitably with disparate, arbitrary and capricious consideration, representation and treatment.  This is a violation of the “Discrimination and Retaliation” Sections of VRRA/USERRA, as well as, Section 13 Discrimination of the PCL&CA.

Also in 1990, the JPLRC and the JCLRC granted Dave Andrews Class “B” Marine Clerk registration pursuant to and in accordance with the newly adopted JCLRC’s 1990 VRRA “guidelines”; twenty (20) years after his discharge from military service.  EXHIBIT “12”
Dave Andrews filed a complaint, in 1988, with the Department of Labor-Office of Federal Contract and Compliance Program (OFCCP) asserting that as a veteran of the Vietnam War he had been denied his Affirmative Action Rights under the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Assistance Act (VEVRAA) by the PMA.

Mr. Andrews was entitled to the rights provided under VEVRAA but he was not entitled to any rights under the VRRA.  Mr. Andrews was not a pre-service employee of the PMA which is a critical and mandatory prerequisite of the VRRA.  At no time did Mr. Andrews work in the longshore industry, in any capacity, prior to his entering military service. 

Therefore, Mr. Andrews received a “sweetheart deal” by the JPLRC, the JCLRC, the PMA and the ILWU in violation of the PCL&CA and numerous state and federal laws. 

I filed a similar complaint with the OFCCP, in 1989, and I am still being denied my Affirmative Action Rights, under VEVRAA, by the PMA.

In 1994, Federal Court Judge David V. Kenyon, in case CV 92-5765 Kn, found that the PMA is subject to all regulations imposed under Section 503 (Disabled/Handicapped) and VEVRAA (Vietnam Era Veterans), including the written Affirmative Action Program (AAP) requirements of §§ 60-250.5 and §§ 60-741.5.  (See EXHIBIT #1)
To date, the PMA is still in noncompliance with Judge Kenyon’s court order and the PMA still has no written Affirmative Action Program as mandated by law.

In 1994 I filed another Coast Referral, SC 41 94, under Section 13 Discrimination and it was not properly processed by the JCLRC and once again I was denied due process.  I was never notified of the hearing or any decision by the JCLRC.  EXHIBIT “13”
I had requested, in writing and orally, to be present at the hearings of my Coast Referrals, SC 9 91 and SC 41 94, as per my rights under Section 13, Section 17 and the JCLRC letter, dated July 18, 1979.  I received no notice of the hearings and, to date, I have received no response to my letters to the ILWU, PMA, JCLRC and ILWU Attorney Rob Remar regarding the status of my Coast Referrals.  EXHIBIT “14” 
In 2003 I filed another Coast Referral, SC 52 03, under Section 13 Discrimination and it was not properly processed by the JCLRC and once again I was denied due process.

EXHIBIT “15”
Instead of processing SC 52 03 under Section 13 Discrimination as it was written, submitted, filed and referred to the JCLRC, by the Joint Clerks Labor Relations Committee, the JCLRC processed it under the newly adopted USERRA Policy.  EXHIBIT “16”

However, the JCLRC did not even apply the facts of my specific situation or consider my merit under USERRA but once again denied my claim, erroneously, on the 1985 Section 13 Coast Referral, SC 14 85, which was not based on my veteran status.  SC 14 85 was filed under Section 13 Discrimination based on “union membership”.
In 1985 there were no JCLRC “guidelines” for VRRA.  The JCLRC “guidelines” for VRRA did not exist until May of 1990.  The PMA, the ILWU and their CBA; the PCL&CA were all in noncompliance with VRRA and VEVRAA.  

In 1985 the ILWU/PMA Welfare and Pension Plans, including the criteria and the formulas for qualification for these benefits, were also in noncompliance with these veteran laws; and they are still in noncompliance, to date.

The arbitrator, in the 1985 arbitration of my Coast Referral SC 14 85, could only rule on my claim and contention of discrimination under Section 13 Discrimination based on “union membership”.  That was the way SC 14 85 was submitted, filed and processed through the grievance system.  He could not rule on my status as a “veteran”; as veteran was not a category of Section 13 Discrimination in 1985.  “Veteran” was not added as a category until August 21, 2001.  (Which was a violation of law in 1985)

In addition, the arbitrator’s authority and jurisdiction is explicitly defined as being limited to and restricted to the contents of the contract documents (PCL&CA) only.  He has no authority or jurisdiction to rule on any issue which is outside of the scope of the contract documents.  The arbitrator can only rule on the issue presented to him for resolution.  

Therefore, the arbitrator could only rule on the issue of discrimination based on my “union membership” for that was the only existing category in Section 13 in 1985.  It was also the way my grievance was submitted, filed and processed.  Had I not filed it this way, it would have been thrown out at the Joint Port Labor Relations Committee (JPLRC) level; as it would not be valid under Section 13.  My Section 13 Discrimination grievance would never have been referred to the JCLRC and, subsequently, to the arbitrator, unless it was filed under “union membership” and not “veteran”.

My Coast Referral, SC 14 85, was not submitted, filed, processed or considered under Section 13 Discrimination based on my “veteran” status, as the JCLRC has implied and asserted all of these years, but rather on “union membership”, as a TW .  

However, the JPLRC, the JCLRC, the PMA and the ILWU have continuously denied my veterans’ rights every time I have requested consideration for each new veteran policy they have adopted in their attempt to be in compliance with VRRA/USERRA.  Each and every time they have denied me consideration and based their denial on the 1985 arbitration without even considering the merits of my case as they have for others.       

This is another example of the illegal conduct and the discriminatory and retaliatory behavior of the JPLRC, the JCLRC, the ILWU and the PMA by treating me unfairly and inequitably with disparate, arbitrary and capricious consideration, representation and treatment.  This is a violation of the “Discrimination and Retaliation” Sections of VRRA/USERRA, as well as, Section 13 Discrimination of the PCL&CA.

I wrote several letters to the JCLRC requesting they review their decision and to properly consider my Coast Referral, SC 52 03, under Section 13.3 and Section 17.4 – the way it was referred to them for resolution by the Joint Clerks’ LRC.  EXHIBIT “17”
The JCLRC, in a letter to me dated December 17, 2003, stated that on November 20, 2003 they reviewed my request to appeal their denial of my claim under the ILWU-PMA USERRA policy.  EXHIBIT “18”
The JCLRC further states that on July 9, 2003, in Meeting No. 15-03, Item 12(a)(iv), the JCLRC agreed that only in cases where the JCLRC fails to agree concerning a USERRA claim shall there be a right to appeal to the Coast Arbitrator.  

Therefore, since the JCLRC agreed to deny my claim in JCLRC Meeting No. 17-03, there is no right to appeal the JCLRC’s denial of my USERRA claim to the Coast Arbitrator.

First, I never submitted a claim to the JCLRC under USERRA.  I did submit Coast Referral, SC 52 03, under Section 13 Discrimination.  The JCLRC failed to properly process Coast Referral SC 52 03 under Section 13 and Section 17 as I requested.  

The JCLRC also failed to comply with the Joint Clerks Labor Relations Committee’s request, in Meeting No. SCCL-0046-2003, dated June 12, 2003, in which they referred SC 52 03 to the JCLRC for resolution in accordance with Section 13.3 and 17.4 of the Pacific Coast Clerks’ Contract Document (PCCCD).  EXHIBIT “19”
This is another example of the illegal conduct and the discriminatory and retaliatory behavior of the JCLRC, the ILWU and the PMA by treating me unfairly and inequitably with disparate, arbitrary and capricious consideration, representation and treatment.  

Second, I contend that the JCLRC’s decision, in Meeting No. 15-03, which denies veterans the right and opportunity to appeal to the Coast Arbitrator when the JCLRC agrees to deny a USERRA claim is a violation of Section 13.1 and 13.3 (veteran) and Section V. Statement of Non-Retaliation of their new USERRA Policy. (See EXHIBIT #7)

If non veterans are allowed to appeal their grievances to the Coast Arbitrator when the JCLRC agrees to deny their grievances, then, veterans should have the same right and opportunity to appeal their grievances to the Coast Arbitrator.  This is a discriminatory act against veterans.

I claim the JCLRC’s decision, in Meeting No. 15-03, which denies veterans the right to appeal their USERRA claims to the Coast Arbitrator, which are denied in agreement by the JCLRC, is in violation of Section 13.3 which states: “Grievances and complaints alleging that a contractual provision or rule is discriminatory as written or as applied... are to be filed and processed ... under the grievance procedures in Section 17.4 of the PCLCA....”.   (See EXHIBIT #6)

Third, the JCLRC states that they reviewed my request for an appeal to the Coast Arbitrator in Meeting No. 21-03, dated November 20, 2003.  Why is there no record of this alleged review of my request for an appeal to the Coast Arbitrator in the “Minutes of the Meeting of the Coast Labor Relations Committee”, for Meeting No. 21-03? 

EXHIBIT “20” 

There is no reference, no indication and no record, at all, to any discussion or review of my request for an appeal to the Coast Arbitrator in the meeting minutes of Meeting No. 21-03 by the CLRC.  I claim this is another example of the illegal, unfair, inequitable, disparate, arbitrary and capricious conduct and behavior and an act of retaliation for filing a Section 13 Discrimination grievance by the JCLRC, the ILWU and the PMA.

These actions are violations of Section 13 Discrimination/Harassment which include discrimination, harassment, retaliation for filing a Section 13 grievance, hard timing, creation of a hostile work environment, blackballing and also violates Section 18 for their failure to act in Good Faith, as well as, VRRA/USERRA “Discrimination/Retaliation”.

I wrote to the ILWU, on December 20, 2003, requesting their support and their position regarding my Coast Referral, SC 52 03.  I asked, if they were not supporting my claims and contentions, to outline the reasons why they choose not to represent a union member in good standing while supporting “casual” workers who are not union members. EXHIBIT “21”

I received no response so I sent another letter requesting a response and enclosed a copy of my original letter.  To date, I have received no response to either of these requests.

This is another example of the union failing to represent me and my claims in violation of the ILWU Constitution and By-Laws and numerous state and federal laws.

I have written numerous letters to the JCLRC and they, too, have failed to respond to my requests and correspondences in violation of the PCL&CA and numerous state and federal laws.  EXHIBIT “22”

The following is evidence of further discrimination, retaliation and disparate treatment in violation of the non discrimination and non retaliation sections of VRRA/USERRA.

The JCLRC, in Meeting No. 8-87, dated June 29, 1987, agreed that a minimum of one hundred (100) clerks should be added to the Los Angeles/Long Beach work force.  EXHIBIT “23”
On September 8, 1987, Harold Kinworthy, Assistant Claims Manager for Metropolitan Stevedore Company, wrote to ILWU Local 13 Welfare Officer, Bruce Krieger, regarding the selection of individuals that Metropolitan felt were the most qualified for a transfer to clerk.  Enclosed were three (3) separate lists, from three (3) separate Metropolitan Claims Adjusters, with my name appearing on two of the three lists as most qualified to transfer to clerk at that time.  EXHIBIT “24”
However, I did not obtain a transfer to clerk until September 19, 1996, nine (9) years later.  EXHIBIT “25”

On August 15, 2001, United States District Judge Robert M. Takasugi, in an American with Disabilities Act (ADA) civil lawsuit, Case No. CV 96-5994 RMT(JGx), found a prima facie showing of a discriminatory promotions policy, by Defendants PMA and ILWU, regarding my transfer to clerk and promotion to foreman, based on my disability.  EXHIBIT “26”
Judge Takasugi found that I had satisfied the seniority requirements for a transfer to clerk but I was not transferred, according to the Defendants, for lack of sufficient seniority. 

Judge Takasugi stated, in his Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, “However, Defendants do not articulate the ‘other reasons’ why Brickner was denied a promotion to marine clerk.  Thus, Defendants have failed to adduce sufficient evidence of a legitimate, nondiscriminatory reason for their failure to promote Brickner to marine clerk”.

Judge Takasugi found, regarding my promotion to foreman, the, “...Defendants do not articulate any legitimate, non-discriminatory reasons for a scoring system that placed 88 persons with equal or less seniority than Brickner ahead of Brickner on the prospective foreman list.  Accordingly, Defendants fail to rebut Brickner’s prima facie showing of a discriminatory promotions policy based on disability.”

These discriminatory and retaliatory acts combined with the discriminatory and retaliatory acts in my efforts to secure my veteran’s rights demonstrate an unconscionable violation of “The Doctrine of Continuing Violation” over a thirty (30) year period of time.  

These acts of discrimination, retaliation and disparate treatment, by the PMA, the ILWU, the JPLRC and the JCLRC, are in violation of the non discrimination, non retaliation and other sections of VRRA/USERRA, as well as the PMA/ILWU new “Discrimination Policy” and their new “USERRA Policy”.  (See EXHIBITS #6 and 4)

Therefore, based on the above evidence, my veteran claims and grievances have never been properly processed or thoroughly considered on the criteria and merit of my veteran status and rights.

I offer the following as evidence regarding the “Doctrine of Laches” and “prejudice”.

I am informed and believe I would overcome any claim based on the Doctrine of Laches. 

I have an overwhelming amount of documents which support my continuous struggle and effort to secure my veterans’ rights with the VA, DOL/LMSA, DOL/VETS, DOL/OFCCP, President of the United States, Senators, representatives of Congress, Senate and Congressional Committees on Veterans’ Affairs, federal court and the numerous grievances I have filed within the ILWU-PMA grievance proceedings over the past thirty (30) years.

The ILWU and the PMA further argued that any claim I make for lost wages and benefits would prejudice their rights.  They state that I should not be paid wages that someone else had worked for and earned, instead of me.

I was there requesting my veteran rights and I was ready, willing and able to work.  It was by my employer’s leave that I was denied my veteran rights and the opportunity to work and earn those wages and benefits myself.  It was not by my leave.

Whose rights were prejudiced?  Who suffered the most and who gained the most?

The PMA and its member companies were still making billions of dollars in private profits, billions of dollars in federal contracts due to the Vietnam War, receiving tax incentives and tax breaks (claiming to be a nonprofit organization), receiving federal subsidies for training and safety programs, abusing casual longshoremen with unfair labor practices and continuously denying numerous veterans their rights in violation of several veteran laws. 

I was forced out of the industry and lost my highly lucrative paying job and career, along with all of its health, welfare and pension benefits.  I was forced to collect unemployment insurance for the first time in my life.  I was forced to move in with my grandmother.  I was forced to sell my new vehicle which I could now not afford.  

I felt humiliated, shamed and depressed over the deplorable and despicable way I was being treated by my employer after serving my country in Vietnam and earning a Bronze Star Medal, an Army Commendation Medal, the Vietnam Medal of Gallantry and various other medals of distinction.  

Finally, I submit a document titled, “DECLARATION OF BRUCE KRIEGER” for your consideration.  EXHIBIT “27”

Mr. Krieger was the Welfare Officer for ILWU Local 13 for thirty-three (33) years and is well acquainted with my effort and struggle to secure my veterans’ rights under VRRA, USERRA and VEVRAA.

His “Declaration” is self explanatory and addresses many issues regarding my thirty-five (35) year struggle to secure my veteran rights.  He cannot understand why so many “casuals” have received their veterans’ reemployment rights, from the PMA, the ILWU, the JPLRC and the JCLRC, and why I have been continuously denied the same rights when I request the same identical consideration.

Mr. Krieger was directly involved in the grievance process when TW Mike Howit received his rights from the PMA, the ILWU, the JPLRC and the JCLRC in 1973.  

He cannot understand how Mr. Howit, who was identically situated and a “mirror” image of my case in every respect, can be granted his veterans’ reemployment rights while I am continuously denied mine by the PMA, the ILWU, the JPLRC and the JCLRC.

I, too, cannot understand how I can be denied all of these years.  I cannot understand how all of the government agencies who have allegedly investigated my claim can continue to ignore the facts, deny my contentions and fail to secure my veterans’ rights.

Everything I have documented and have endured for over thirty-five years was not supposed to happen to me or any other veterans.  The VRRA, USERRA and VEVRAA were enacted to protect veterans from violations of their reemployment and employment rights and to prevent discrimination and retaliation by employers; all of which befell me.

The laws were there to protect me from exactly what has happened to me.  I complied with all the criteria of the veterans’ laws and their statutes.  Somewhere, somehow, the laws and the system failed me and I was forgotten, ignored, left behind and abandoned by my employer and by those who swore an oath to protect me and my rights; as one who has served his country honorably and with meritorious distinction.

In conclusion, I wish to address my current and pending arbitration with the PMA/ILWU Pension Plan and their Trustees.  I filed a discrimination grievance, with the PMA/ILWU Pension Plan and the Trustees, based on my veteran and disabled status. 

Most of the evidence, which I have submitted to them for consideration, is contained herein.

However, once again the Trustees and their representatives have denied my claims based on the 1985 arbitration decision.  They wrongfully assert that the 1985 arbitration decision found that the PMA had not denied me any of my rights, as a veteran, under all veterans’ laws.  

They intentionally, knowingly, willingly and willfully attempted to deceive the arbitrator and to distort the facts to fit their position.  They are well aware of the fact that my 1985 arbitration was a discrimination grievance based on “union membership”, as a TW, not as a “veteran”.

They are well aware of the scope of the arbitrator’s authority and jurisdiction.  They know that the arbitrator cannot rule on issues outside of the contract documents. 

And, yet, they asserted that he had ruled, in my 1985 arbitration, on all of my veterans’ rights and claims under all veterans’ laws; to include: 

1) those veterans’ rights and laws which were not yet written or contained within  the contract documents, at that time, 

2) the contract documents’ formulas for Welfare and Pension benefits based on veterans’ status which were not in compliance with the existing veterans’ laws or case laws of the day, and, 

3) all the veteran laws which were outside of his jurisdiction and authority. 

The Trustees were presented with all of the evidence which documents all of the acts of discrimination, retaliation, the failure of the JCLRC to properly process my discrimination grievances according to the PCL&CA, the intentional failure of the JCLRC to notify me of any of their decisions, on my grievances, so that I am unable to appeal within the time limits of the contract, and, the retaliation for filing Section 13 Discrimination grievances, the majority of which were filed against the JCLRC.

Please note here that the members of the JCLRC are also the Trustees.  It is no wonder why I cannot receive justice in their grievance process.  Their grievance process only grieves the grievant.   

The current arbitrator, John Kagel, (who is the son of the past arbitrator who decided my 1985 arbitration, Sam Kagel) refused to overturn his father’s 1985 arbitration decision and ignored all of the overwhelming evidence which I presented.

There were no VRRA “guidelines” in 1985, there was no USERRA in 1985, and, the PMA/ILWU were in noncompliance with the veterans’ laws in 1985.  How the arbitrator can ignore these facts and still deny me consideration for the veterans’ rights - which were adopted by the JCLRC after my 1985 arbitration and have been granted to numerous “casuals” - is beyond belief.

He did find that I was not credited with the proper amount of hours for the year prior to my entering military service and ordered the Pension Plan Administrator to reevaluate my hours.  

If I am given the correct amount of hours I would then satisfy the requirements of a formula for “casual” longshoremen to receive credit towards their pension for the year prior to military service and for their military service time.  If this occurs the arbitrator may then have to reconsider my VRRA/USERRA claim.

He also ordered the Pension Plan Administrator to review some of my work years which may be credited as “good years” towards pension due to my disabilities.

It has been over one (1) year since he made this order and I still have not heard from the Pension Plan Administrator.  

This is more retaliation in conjunction with my veteran claims and is in violation of the “Discrimination and Retaliation” Sections of VRRA/USERRA, as well as, Section 13 Discrimination of the PCL&CA.

My attorney is making a request to the arbitrator to reconsider my veteran claims based on the newly amended USERRA rules which became effective on January 18, 2006. 

In this request he is also addressing the inappropriate delay, by the Pension Plan Administrator, regarding the arbitrator’s order to review and reevaluate the remaining pending issues. 

All of the above evidence; 

1) supports my claims and contentions, 

2) documents the denial of my veterans’ rights by my employer, and, 

3) attests to the numerous violations, under VRRA, VEVRAA, USERRA and their respective discrimination and retaliation sections, which I have suffered and endured for over thirty-five (35) years at the hands of my employer. 

These numerous acts of discrimination and retaliation, under VRRA/USERRA, also substantiate a violation under the “Doctrine of Continuing Violation”.  These acts precipitated in my “constructive termination” and early retirement, under a disability pension, based on post traumatic stress disorder. 

If you have any questions or need any further information please feel free to contact me at the above address or phone number.

Thank you for your time and patience.

Sincerely,

Wes Brickner

EXHIBITS

cc: Robert Wilson
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